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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

SUSAN FITZGERALD, State Bar No. 112278 
Deputy Atton1ey General 

California Department of Justice 
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, CA 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2066 
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 

Atton1eys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

KARA SUEL YNN WONG 
5387 Camino Playa NOlie 
San Diego, CA 92124 

Phan11acist No. RPH 46020 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2379 

OAR No. L-2001100043 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the 

above-entitled proceedings that the following matters are true: 

PARTIES 

1. Patricia F. Harris (Con1plainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of 

Pharn1acy. She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this lnatter 

by Bill Lockyer, Attorney General of the State of California, by Susan Fitzgerald, Deputy 

Attorney General. 

2. Respondent Kara Suelynn Wong (Respondent) is represented in this 

proceeding by attorney Claudia H. Myles, Esq., whose address is P.O. Box 572891, Tarzana, CA 

91357. 
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3. On or about March 10, 1993, the Board of Phanllacy issued phannacist 

license no. RPH 46020 to Respondent. The phannacist license was in full force and effect at all 

times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. 2379 and will expire on Noven1ber 30, 

2002, unless renewed. 

JURISDICTION 

4. Accusation No. 2379 was filed before the Board ofPhannacy (Board), 

Departn1ent of Consumer Affairs" and is cunently pending against Respondent. The Accusation 

and all other statutorily required docun1ents were properly served on Respondent on August 31, 

2001. Respondent tin1ely filed her Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation. A copy of 

Accusation No. 2379 is attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

5. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and 

understands the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 2379. Respondent has also carefully 

read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlen1ent and 

Disciplinary Order. 

6. Respondent is fully aware of her legal rights in this l11atter, including the 

right to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by 

counsel at her own expense; the right to confront and cross-exaIlline the witnesses against her; 

the right to present evidence and to testify on her own behalf; the right to the issuance of 

subpoenas to cOl11pel the attendance of witnesses and the production of docul11ents; the right to 

reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the 

California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up 

each and every right set forth above. 

CULPABILITY 

8. Respondent adn1its the truth of paragraphs 7 through 18 of Accusation No. 

2379, and that these charges constitute cause for discipline of her phannacist license. 
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9. Respondent agrees that her pharmacist license is subject to discipline, and 

she agrees to be bound by the Board's imposition of discipline as set forth in the Disciplinary 

Order below. 

CONTINGENCY 

10. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board. Respondent 

understands and agrees that counsel for COlnplainant and the staff of the Board may 

communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice to 

or participation by Respondent or her counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondent 

understands and agrees that she n1ay not withdraw her agreelnent or seek to rescind the 

stipulation prior to the tin1e the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this 

stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlen1ent and Disciplinary Order shall be of 

no force or effect, except for this paragraph; it shall be inadn1issible in any legal action between 

the parties; and the Board shall not be disqualified fron1 further action by having considered this 

n1atter. 

11. The parties understand and agree that facsin1ile copies of this Stipulated 

Settlen1ent and Disciplinary Order, including facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same 

force and effect as the originals. 

12. In consideration of the foregoing adlnissionsand stipulations, the parties 

agree that the Board n1ay, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the 

following Disciplinary Order: 

DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacist No. RPH 46020 issued to 

Respondent Kara Suelynn Wong is revoked. However, the revocation is stayed and Respondent 

is placed on probation for three (3) years on the following tenns and conditions. 

1. Actual Suspension - Pharmacist. As part of probation, Respondent is 

suspended fron1 the practice of pharmacy for ninety (90) days, beginning the effective date of 

this decision. 
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During suspension, Respondent shall not enter any pharmacy area or any portion 

of the licensed premises of a wholesaler, Inedical device retailer or any other distributor of drugs 

which is licensed by the Board, or any manufacturer, or where dangerous drugs, controlled 

substances or legend drugs are Inaintained. Respondent shall not practice phannacy nor do any 

act involving drug selection, selection of stock, manufacturing, compounding, dispensing or 

patient consultation; nor shall Respondent Inanage, administer, or be a consultant to any licensee 

of the Board, or have access to or control the ordering, manufacturing or dispensing of dangerous 

drugs or controlled substances of dangerous drugs or controlled substances. Respondent shall 

not direct or control any aspect of the practice of pharmacy. Subject to the above restrictions, 

Respondent Inay continue to own or hold an interest in any phannacy in which she holds an 

interest at the tilne this decision beCOlnes effective. 

2. Obey All Laws. Respondent shall obey all federal and state laws and 

regulations substantially related or govenling the practice of pharmacy. 

3. Reporting to the Board. Respondent shall report to the Board or its 

designee quarterly. The repoli shall be nlade either in person or in writing, as directed. If the 

final probation report is not 111ade as directed, probation shall be extended automatically until 

such time as the final repOli is ll1ade. 

4. Interview with the Board. Upon receipt of reasonable notice, 

Respondent shall appear in person for interviews with the Board or its designee upon request at 

various intervals at a location to be detemlined by the Board or its designee. Failure to appear 

for a scheduled interview without prior notification to Board staff shall be considered a violation 

of probation. 

5. Cooperation with Board Staff. Respondent shall cooperate with the 

Board's inspection program and in the Board's monitoring and investigation of the Respondent's 

compliance with the terms and conditions of her probation. Failure to cooperate shall be 

considered a violation of probation. 

6. Peer Review. Respondent shall subnlit to peer review as deemed 

necessary by the Board. 
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7. Continuing Education. Respondent shall provide evidence of efforts to 

maintain skill and knowledge as a pharmacist as directed by the Board. 

8. Notice to Employers. Respondent shall notify all present and prospective 

employers of the decision in Accusation No. 2379 and the telIDs, conditions and restrictions 

imposed on Respondent by the decision. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this 

decision, and within fifteen (15) days of Respondent undertaking new elnploYlnent, Respondent 

shall cause her en1ployer to report to the Board in writing acknowledging the employer has read 

the decision in Accusation No. 2379. 

If Respondent works for or is employed by or through a pharmacy employment 

service, Respondent n1ust notify the pharmacist-in-charge and/or owner at every pharmacy at 

which she is to be en1ployed or used of the fact and ten11S of the decision in this case in advance 

of the Respondent con1n1encing work at the pham1acy. 

"En1ployment" within the Ineaning of this provision shall include any full-tin1e, 

part-tilne, ten1porary or relief service or phmIDacy n1anagen1ent service as a phannacist, whether 

the Respondent is considered an en1ployee or independent contractor. 

9. No Preceptorships or Being Pharmacist-in-Charge. Respondent shall 

not perfom1 any of the duties of a preceptor, and shall not be the phannacist-in-charge of any 

phan11acy licensed by the Board. 

10. Reimbursement of Board Costs. Respondent shall pay to the Board its 

costs of investigation and prosecution in the an10unt of $4,523.00. Respondent shall n1ake said 

payment or paYlnents within two years of the effective date of the decision herein and may do so 

on a quarterly schedule. If Respondent fails to pay the costs as specified by the Board and on or 

before the date detennined by the Board, the Board shall, without affording the Respondent 

notice and the opportunity to be heard, revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary order that 

was stayed. In any event, probation shall not terminate unless and until the full amount of cost 

recovery has been received by the Board. 

11. Probation Monitoring Costs. Respondent shall pay the costs associated 

with probation monitoring as determined by the Board each and every year of probation. Such 
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costs shall be payable to the Board at the end of each year of probation. Failure to pay such costs 

shall be considered a violation of probation. 

12. Status of License. Respondent shall, at all times while on probation, 

maintain an active current license with the Board, including any period during which suspension 

or probation is tolled. If Respondent's license expires by operation of law or otherwise, upon 

renewal or reapplication, Respondent's license shall be subject to all ternls of this probation not 

previously satisfied. 

13. Notification of Employment/Mailing Address Change. Within ten (10) 

days of a change in enlploynlent -- either leaving or conullencing employtnent -- Respondent 

shall so notify the Board in writing, including the address of the new enlployer; within ten (10) 

days of a change of Inailing address, Respondent shall notify the Board in writing. If 

Respondent works for or is elnployed through a phannacy elnploynlent service, Respondent 

shall, as requested, provide to the Board or its designee with a work schedule, indicating dates 

and location of enlploynlent. 

14. Tolling of Probation. If Respondent leaves Califonlia to reside or 

practice outside this state, Respondent nlust notify the Board in writing of the dates of departure 

and retunl within ten (10) days of depatiure or retunl. Periods of residency, except such periods 

where the Respondent is actively practicing phannacy within California, or practice outside 

California shall not apply to reduction of the probationary period. 

Should Respondent, regardless of residency, for any reason cease practicing 

pharnlacy in California, Respondent Inust notify the Board in writing within ten (l0) days of 

cessation of the practice ofphatl1lacy or resunling the practice ofphannacy. "Cessation of 

practice" means any period oftilne exceeding thirty (30) days in which Respondent is not 

engaged in the practice ofphannacy as defined in section 4052 of the Business and Professions 

Code. 

It is a violation of probation for Respondent's probation to remain tolled pursuant 

to the provisions of this condition for a period exceeding a consecutive period of [three] years. 
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1S. Tolling of Suspension. If Respondent leaves California to reside or 

practice outside this state, or for any period exceeding ten (lO),days (including vacation), 

Respondent must notify the Board in writing of the dates of departure and return. Periods of 

residency or practice outside the state - or any absence exceeding a period of ten (10) days shall 

not apply to the reduction of the suspension period. 

Respondent shall not practice pharmacy upon retu111ing to this state until 

notification by the Board the period of suspension has been completed. 

16. Violation of Probation. If Respondent violates probation in any respect, 

the Board, after giving Respondent notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation 

and carry out the disciplinary order which was stayed. If a Petition to Revoke Probation or an 

Accusation is filed against Respondent during probation, the Board shall have continuing 

jurisdiction, and the period of probation shall be extended, until the Petition to Revoke Probation 

andlor Accusation is heard and decided. If a Respondent has not conlplied with any term or 

condition of probation, the Board shall have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent, and 

probation shall autonlatically be extended until all tenllS and conditions have been met or the 

Board has taken other action as deen1ed appropriate to treat the failure to con1ply as a violation of 

probation, to tenllinate probation, and to impose the penalty which was stayed. 

17. Completion of Probation. Upon successful cOIllpletion of probation, 

Respondent's license will be fully restored. 

ACCEPTANCE 

I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and 

have fully discussed it with Illy attorney, Claudia H. Myles, Esq. I understand the stipulation and 

the effect it will have on my pharmacist license. I enter into this Stipulated Settlement and 

Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the 
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PATED: 'jd-rl is ,2002. 

BILL LOCKVER, Attomey Gcn.ml 
of the 514fe of Califom.ia 

s~~tM~

Deputy Attorney Gen 
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BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

KARA SUEL YNN WONG 
5387 Camino Playa Norte 
San Diego, CA 92124 

Pharmacist No. RPH 46020 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2379 

OAR No. L-2001100043 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by 

the Board of Pharmacy, Departn1ent of Consun1er Affairs, as its Decision in this matter. 

This Decision shall becolne effective on April 28, 2002 

It is so ORDERED _...::.Ma-==r-=ch==--=2=-.::9'-1-,--=...20;:::;,...;0=2=---___ 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAlRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By: 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

SUSAN FITZGERALD, State Bar No. 112278 
Deputy Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, California 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, California 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2066 
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 

Attorneys for Con1plainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

KARA SUELYNN WONG 
5387 Camino Playa Norte 
San Diego, CA 92124 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 46020 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2379 

ACCUSATION 

COlnplainant alleges: 


PARTIES 


1. Patricia F. Harris ("Complainant") brings this Accusation solely in her 

official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer 

Affairs. 

2. On or about March 10,1993, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist 

License Number RPH 46020 to Kara Suelynn Wong ("Respondent"). The Pharmacist License 

was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on 

November 30, 2002, unless renewed. 
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JURISDICTION 

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Phannacy ("Board"), 

under the authority of the following sections of the Business and Professions Code ("Code"). 

4. Section 4301 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board shall take 

action against any holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional conduct or whose license 

has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct 

shall include, but is not litnited to, any of the following: 

(£) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, 

deceit, or corruption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee 

or otherwise, and whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not. 

(g) Knowingly n1aking or signing any certificate or other document that falsely 

represents the existence or nonexistence of a state of facts. 

(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 

and duties of a licensee under Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 4000) of the Business 

and Professions Code. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 

(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating 

controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled 

substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. 

(emphasis added). 

(0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or 

abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of Chapter 9 

(commencing with Section 4000) of the Business and Professions Code or of the 

applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including 

regulations established by the board. 
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5. Section 4059 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that no person shall 

furnish any dangerous drug upon the prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, or 

veterinarian. 

6. Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may 

request the administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or 

violations of the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation 

and enforcement of the case. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

7. During all relevant times, respondent was employed as a pharn1acist at 

COlnmunity Medical Pharmacy in Chula Vista, California. 

8. Between at least November 1, 1997 and October 29, 1999, respondent 

forged approximately 67 prescriptions for a variety of dangerous drugs l
. In doing so, she falsely 

used the nan1e of a San Diego physician without his knowledge or authorization. 

9. Having created false prescriptions, respondent then illegally diverted the 

drugs in those prescriptions from her employer. 

10. Respondent falsely billed her insurance carrier for the costs of the 

illegally diverted drugs, using her own account with Blue Cross and her husband's account. 

11. Respondent illegally diverted at least $6,046.54 worth of dangerous drugs 

from her employer. 

12. Respondent falsely billed her insurance carrier for at least $5,493.34. 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Unprofessional Conduct - Conviction of a Substantially Related Crime) 


13. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301(1) for 

conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a 

pharmacist. The circumstances are that on or about May 14, 2001, in the San Diego Superior 

1. As used throughout this Accusation, "dangerous drugs" is defined as per Business & 
Professions Code section 4022. 
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Court case of People v. Kara Suelynn Wong, aka Suelynn Wong, Case No. CD 158748, 

respondent was convicted on a guilty plea to a misdemeanor violation of Health and Safety Code 

section 11368 (forging a prescription for a narcotic drug). 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct - Forging Prescriptions) 

14. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (g) for 

forging prescriptions for dangerous drugs. The CirCUlTIstances are as alleged in paragraph 8 

above, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct - False Insurance Claims) 

15. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (g) for 

knowingly n1aking or signing false insurance c1ailTIs. The circumstances are as alleged in 

paragraphs 8, 9,10, and 12 above, which are incorporated herein by reference. 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct - Moral Turpitude, Dishonesty, Fraud, Deceit re Prescriptions) 

16. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301(f) in that 

she committed acts of moral turpitude, dishonesty and fraud in her forging of prescriptions and 

her diversion of drugs from her employer, as alleged above in paragraphs 7,8, 9 and 11 and 

which are incorporated herein by reference. 

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct - Moral Turpitude, Dishonesty, Fraud, 
Deceit re Insurance Claims) 

17. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (f) in that 

she committed acts of moral turpitude, dishonesty and fraud in her creation of false insurance 

claims, as alleged above in paragraphs 9, 10 and 12 and which are incorporated herein by 

reference. 
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SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct -Violation of Bus. & Prof. Code §4059) 

18. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (0) in 

conjunction with section 4059 for illegally furnishing dangerous drugs. The circumstances are 

that during the time period alleged above, respondent furnished a variety of dangerous drugs to, 

at least, her lnother and father, which drugs she had illegally diverted froln her employer. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the n1atters herein 

alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Phannacy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Phannacist License Number RPH 46020, issued 

to Kara Suelynl1 Wong; 

2. Ordering Kara Suelynn Wong to pay the Board of Pharmacy the 

reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and 

Professions Code section 125.3; 

3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: ---"SC-/-'L-=.::::2~'-f-l-/O_I___
I } 

PATRICIA F. HARRIS 
Executive Officer 
Board of Phannacy 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 
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